

Florida Voter Guide

Rev. 01-2019

Table of Contents

Voter's Bill of Rights and Responsibilities	4
Election Dates and Deadlines for 2018 Primary and General Elections	5
Candidate Races	6
What offices are up for election in 2018?	6
Voter Registration	7
Who can register to vote?	7
How do I register to vote?	7
When can I register?	7
Are there any special requirements when registering and voting for the first time in Florida?	8
Changes in Address, Name, Party, and Signature	9
How do I update my registration record?	9
When can I update my registration record?	. 10
Why am I being asked to confirm my address?	. 10
Voting by Mail	. 10
Can I vote by mail?	. 10
How can I request a vote-by-mail ballot?	. 10
When can I expect my vote-by-mail ballot?	. 11
Can I pick-up a vote-by-mail ballot?	. 11
When must I return my vote-by-mail ballot?	. 12
Where do I return my vote-by-mail ballot?	. 12
What can I do if I forgot to sign my vote-by-mail ballot or my signature does not match signature in my record?	
Uniformed Services and Overseas Citizens (UOCAVA)	. 13
How do I register or update my registration record?	. 13
Can I register after the 29-day deadline for registration?	. 13
How do I request a vote-by-mail ballot?	. 14
When can I expect my vote-by-mail ballot?	. 14
How and when do I return my vote-by-mail ballot?	. 14
Can I use the federal write-in absentee ballot (FWAB) if my ballot has not arrived?	. 15
When can I use a state write-in vote-by-mail ballot?	. 16
Early Voting	. 16
When is early voting?	. 16

Voting at the Polls – What to Expect	6
When will the polls open and close?16	6
Where do I vote on election day?	6
How will I know if my polling place changes?17	7
What photo identification do I bring?17	7
Who are poll watchers?	8
What is provisional voting?	8
What voting equipment do I use?	9
Assistance with Voting	9
Can I get bring or get help at the polls?19	9
Sample Ballot	0
Where can I get a sample ballot for an upcoming election?	0
Primary Election	0
What is a "closed primary"?	0
Judicial Elections	1
How do I vote on judicial races?21	1
Public Record	1
Is my voter registration and voting history public record?21	1
Poll Workers	2
How can I become a poll worker?	2
Violations	2
How do I report voter or election fraud or a violation of an election law?	2
Contact Information	3
Who do I contact if I have additional questions?23	3
Index of supervisors of elections' contact information	4

Voter's Bill of Rights

(Section 101.031, F.S.)

Each registered voter in this state has the right to:

- 1. Vote and have his or her vote accurately counted.
- 2. Cast a vote if he or she is in line at the official closing of the polls in that county.
- 3. Ask for and receive assistance in voting.
- 4. Receive up to two replacement ballots if he or she makes a mistake prior to the ballot being cast.
- 5. An explanation if his or her registration or identity is in question.
- 6. If his or her registration or identity is in question, cast a provisional ballot.
- 7. Written instructions to use when voting, and, upon request, oral instructions in voting from elections officers.
- 8. Vote free from coercion or intimidation by elections officers or any other person.
- 9. Vote on a voting system that is in working condition and that will allow votes to be accurately cast.

Voter Responsibilities

(Section 101.031, F.S.)

Each registered voter in this state should:

- 1. Familiarize himself or herself with the candidates and issues.
- 2. Maintain with the office of the Supervisor of Elections a current address.
- 3. Know the location of his or her polling place and its hours of operation.
- 4. Bring proper identification to the polling station.
- 5. Familiarize himself or herself with the operation of the voting equipment in his or her precinct.
- 6. Treat precinct workers with courtesy.
- 7. Respect the privacy of other voters.
- 8. Report any problems or violations of election laws to the Supervisor of Elections.
- 9. Ask questions, if needed.
- 10. Make sure that his or her completed ballot is correct before leaving the polling station.

NOTE TO VOTER:

Failure to perform any of these responsibilities does not prohibit a voter from voting

Florida Department of State/Division of Elections

Election Dates and Deadlines

for 2018 Primary and General Elections

Candidate Qualifying Period			
U.S. Senator, U.S. Representative, Judicial, State Attorney (20th Circuit Only) and Public Defender (20th Circuit Only)	Noon, Monday, April 30 – Noon, Friday, May 4, 2018		
Governor and Cabinet, State Senator, State Representative, County Office and Special Districts	Noon, Monday, June 18 – Noon, Friday, June 22, 2018		
Voter Registration "Book Closing" Deadline			
Primary Election	Monday, July 30, 2018		
General Election	Tuesday, October 9, 2018		
Vote-by-Mail Ballot "Send" Deadline			
For absent stateside and overseas uniformed and civilian voters ("UOCAVA voters") (45-day deadline before election):			
Primary Election	Saturday, July 14, 2018		
General Election	Saturday, September 22, 2018		
For domestic voters (7-d	ay mailing window):		
Primary Election	Friday, July 24 – Friday, July 31, 2018		
General Election	Tuesday, October 2 – Tuesday, October 9, 2018		
Early Voting PeriodA minimum of 8 days of early voting must be held beginning on the 10th day and ending on the 3rd day before Election Day. Each county Supervisor of Elections may offer additional days of early voting on any or more of the following days: the 15th, 14th, 13th, 12th or 11th day and the last Sunday before Election Day. Contact your county Supervisor of Elections for information about the dates, time, and locations in your county.Primary ElectionSaturday, August 18 – Saturday, August 25, 2018Concered ElectionSaturday, October 27 –			
General Election	Saturday, November 3, 2018		
Election Day For information about county or municipal election dates, contact your <u>county Supervisor of Elections</u> or the city clerk's office, respectively.			
Primary Election	Tuesday, August 28, 2018		
General Election	Tuesday, November 6, 2018		

Candidate Races

1. What offices are up for election in 2018?

Federal Offices

- U.S. Senator (one of two seats)
- Representative in Congress (all districts)

Statewide Offices

- Governor and Lieutenant Governor
- Attorney General
- Chief Financial Officer
- Commissioner of Agriculture

Multicounty and District Offices (Contact your county Supervisor of Elections to determine if any of these offices in your county will appear on the ballot in the upcoming general election.)

- State Senator (only even-numbered districts)
- State Representative (all districts)
- State Attorney (only 20th Judicial Circuit)
- Public Defender (only 20th Judicial Circuit)

County Offices (Contact your county Supervisor of Elections to determine the manner of election for these offices.)

- Board of County Commissioners
- School Board (nonpartisan)
- Other constitutional offices depending on county

Judicial Retention (Nonpartisan)

- Justices, Supreme Court of Florida (only those whose terms expire January 2019)
- Judges, District Courts of Appeal (only those whose terms expire January 2019)

Circuit Judges (Nonpartisan)

• Only those whose terms expire January 2019

County Court Judges (Nonpartisan)

• Only those whose terms expire January 2019

NOTE: A ballot may also include proposed amendments to Florida's Constitution and county, municipal, and district referenda or other public measures.

Voter Registration

2. Who can register to vote?

(Section 97.041, Fla. Stat.)

To register and vote, you must be:

- At least 18 years of age (you can pre-register on or after your 16th birthday),
- A citizen of the United States of America, and
- A legal resident of Florida and of the county where you intend to vote.

You cannot register or vote if you are:

- Adjudicated mentally incapacitated with respect to voting, unless that right has been restored.
- A convicted felon, unless your right to vote has been restored.
- Not a citizen of the United States of America (A lawful permanent resident cannot register or vote in Florida).

3. How do I register to vote?

(Section 97.053, Fla. Stat.)

You can submit an application:

- Online at <u>RegisterToVoteFlorida.gov</u>
- Through any of these offices:
 - A Florida driver's license office in person or online when you renew your driver's license at <u>GoRenew.com</u>
 - o A tax collector's office that issues driver's licenses or Florida identification cards
 - A voter registration agency (i.e., any office that provides public assistance or state funded program for persons with disabilities, any armed recruitment office, any center for independent living and any public library).
- By mail
- In person

The statewide voter registration application form (<u>English PDF</u>/<u>Español PDF</u>), is available for download and print from the Division's website. Forms are also available at any county Supervisor of Elections office, library, or any entity authorized by the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission to issue fishing, hunting, or trapping permits.

4. When can I register?

(Sections 97.053, 97.055 and 97.0555, Fla. Stat.)

You can register or update your record any time. To vote in an upcoming election, the deadline to register is the 29th day before that election. A later registration deadline is available under limited circumstances for military and overseas citizens. See also *Question 17 - Can I register after the 29-day deadline for registration*? under *Uniformed Services and Overseas Citizens*. Once registered, you will receive a voter information card.

Florida Department of State/Division of Elections

5. Are there any special requirements when registering and voting for the first time in Florida?

(Section 97.0535, Fla. Stat.)

Yes, but only if you are registering by mail and have never been issued a Florida driver license number, Florida identification number, or a Social Security number. You must provide a copy of one of the following forms of identification (ID) with your application form or at any time before you vote for the first time:

Form containing your name and photo	or, a copy of a current and valid:
 United States passport Debit or credit card Military identification Student identification Retirement center identification Neighborhood association identification Public assistance Identification Veteran health identification card issued by the United States Department of Veteran Affairs Florida license to carry a concealed weapon or firearm Employee identification card issued by any branch, department, agency, or entity of the Federal Government, the state, a county, or a municipality. 	 Utility bill Bank statement Government check or paycheck Other government document containing your name and current residence address.

Note:

- Do not send original documents with the application form.
- If you vote-by-mail and did not submit a copy of the ID with the voter registration application, you must include a copy of your ID with the returned ballot or your ballot will not count. If you fall within one of the following categories, you are exempt from the ID requirement when voting by mail but you must swear or affirm you are eligible:
 - Are 65 years of age or older.
 - Have a temporary or permanent physical disability.
 - Are a member of the uniformed services on active duty or a spouse or dependent, thereof, who, by reason of such active duty, is absent from the county on Election Day.
 - Are a member of the Merchant Marine or a spouse or dependent thereof, who, by reason of service in the Merchant Marine, is absent from the county on Election Day.
 - Are residing outside the United States but are eligible to vote in Florida.
- Photo/signature ID is required before you vote during early voting or on Election Day.

Changes in Address, Name, Party, or Signature

6. How do I update my registration record?

(Section 97.053, 97.1031, 101.045, Fla. Stat.)

You can submit updates to your voter registration record in the same way you registered to vote. See response to *How do I register to vote?*

• Address changes.

Once registered in Florida, you do not have to re-register for an address change, but you must:

- Contact the Supervisor of Elections in the county of your new residence.
- Must make the change in person, by phone, by fax, by e-mail, or by other signed written notice (including a voter registration application), provided the signed notice includes your date of birth, or submit a voter registration application.

Note:

Address changes at the polls are only allowed if you are moving within your county or your address change moves you to a precinct that uses electronic poll books (precinct registers), or if you are moving from another county and you are an active uniformed services personnel or a family member thereof. In all other circumstances, you will not be able to update your address at the polls. However, you will still be allowed to vote a provisional ballot.

• Name changes.

If you changed your name by marriage or other legal process, submit a voter registration application or other signed written notice to include your date of birth. Name changes are allowed at the polls by filling out an affirmation before voting.

• Party affiliation changes.

To change your party affiliation, submit a voter registration application or other signed written notice, which includes your date of birth. You cannot change your party at the polling place. To be effective for a primary election, a party change must be made at least 29 days before the election.

• Signature (handwriting) changes. (See section 98.077, Fla. Stat.)

To update your signature, submit a voter registration application. Signatures change over time and should be regularly updated with the Supervisor of Elections. If your signature on record does not match your signature on a candidate or issue petition, vote-by-mail ballot, or provisional ballot, the petition or ballot will not count. The latest signature on record by the start of canvassing of ballots is the signature that the Canvassing Board uses to verify a vote-by-mail or provisional ballot. Canvassing can start as early as 15 days before Election Day. Contact your Supervisor to find out when canvassing begins in your county.

Florida Department of State/Division of Elections

7. When can I update my registration record?

(Section 97.055, Fla. Stat.)

You can submit an update to your record at any time. To be effective for a primary election, a party change must be made at least 29 days before the election.

8. Why am I being asked to confirm my address?

(Sections 98.065, 98.0655, Fla. Stat.)

Whenever the Supervisor of Elections receives information from the post office or another governmental agency source that you have moved, the Supervisor will send you notice to confirm the address change.

If the information shows that you may no longer live in the state, the Supervisor of Elections will send you a follow-up address confirmation final notice. If the notice comes back undeliverable or you do not respond within 30 days, your registration status will be changed from active to inactive. As an inactive voter, you are still registered and can vote. Your inactive status goes back to active status if you update your voter registration record, go to the polls to vote, or request a vote-by-mail ballot. However, if you do not take any of these actions after two general (federal) elections from the date you were made first inactive, your name will be removed from the registration system. You will have to re-register to vote in Florida.

Voting By Mail

Note: For vote-by-mail information applicable to absent stateside and overseas uniformed services personnel and overseas civilian, refer to Questions 16-22. For all other voters, read below:

9. Can I vote by mail?

(Sections 97.021(1) and 101.62, Fla. Stat.)

Yes, any qualified and registered voter can vote by mail but you must first request a vote-by-mail ballot. You do not need an excuse to vote-by-mail except on Election Day.

10. How can I request a vote-by-mail ballot?

(Sections 101.62 and 101.69, Fla. Stat.)

You, or a member of your immediate family or your legal guardian on your behalf, may request a vote-by-mail ballot from your Supervisor of Elections.

If you make the request, you must provide:

- Your name;
- Your address; and
- Your date of birth.

If your immediate family member or legal guardian requests the ballot for you, he or she must provide the following *additional* information:

- The requester's name;
- The requester's address
- The requester's driver license number, if available;
- The requester's relationship to the voter; and,
- The requester's signature (written request only).

A request can be made either in person, by mail, by fax, by phone, by email or online through the Supervisor of Elections' website. If you ask that the ballot be mailed to an address other than one on file, you must submit a signed written request unless you are an absent uniformed services voter or an overseas voter

You can request a vote-by-mail ballot for one election, several elections or all elections in which you are eligible to vote, starting after the date you first requested the ballot through the end of the calendar year following the second ensuing regularly scheduled general election.

11. When can I expect my vote-by-mail ballot?

(Sections 101.62 and 101.69, Fla. Stat.)

- For vote-by-mail ballot requests already on file, vote-by-mail ballots must be sent:
 - No later than 45 days before the election for voters covered by the Uniformed and Overseas Citizens Absentee Voting Act (UOCAVA). The ballots will be sent by forwardable mail, fax, or email as specified by the voter in the request.
 - During a 7-day window (between 35 and 28 days) by non-forwardable mail to all other non-UOCAVA vote-by-mail ballot voters.
- *If no vote-by-mail ballot request is on file*, your Supervisors of Elections will provide you a vote-by-mail ballot as soon as possible after receiving your request.

The last day to ask for a vote-by- ballot to be mailed to you is 5 p.m. on the sixth day before the election. The latest a supervisor may mail a vote-by-mail ballot to you is four days before an election.

12. Can I pick up a vote-by-mail ballot?

(Sections 101.62 and 101.69, Fla. Stat.)

You may pick up your vote-by-mail ballot at any time after the ballots are printed and up through Election Day. Your designee may pick up a vote-by-mail ballot for you on Election Day^{*} or up to five days before the day of the election. Your designee is limited per election to picking up two blank vote-by-mail ballots for other voters, not counting his or her own ballot or ballots for members of his or her immediate family. A designee must have <u>written authorization</u> from you, present a picture I.D., and sign a declaration. If you do not have a vote-by-mail ballot request already on file, a written request must accompany the affidavit.

*Election Day pick-up/delivery: The voter or his or her designee must execute an <u>Election Day Vote-by-Mail Ballot Delivery Affidavit</u>. The affidavit affirms that an emergency keeps the voter from being able to vote at his or her assigned polling place.

Florida Department of State/Division of Elections

13. When must I return my vote-by-mail ballot?

(Sections 101.62 and 101.69, Fla. Stat.)

The Supervisor of Elections' office must receive your vote-by-mail ballot no later than 7 p.m. locally on the day of the election.

If you are an overseas voter voting in a presidential preference primary or general election, you have 10 extra days from Election Day for the ballot to be received by Supervisor of Elections' office. Refer to *Question 20 - How and when do I return my vote-by-mail ballot?*

14. Where do I return my vote-by-mail ballot?

(Section 101.62, Fla. Stat.)

You must return your voted vote-by-mail ballot to the Supervisor of Elections in your county of residence. Voted mail ballots cannot be accepted at polling places on election day unless you wish to vote at the polls instead. The returned ballot will be cancelled and you can vote a regular ballot.

You can track the status of your vote-by-mail ballot through the voter information lookup at: <u>dos.myflorida.com/elections</u> or through your Supervisor of Elections' website.

15. What can I do if I forgot to sign my vote-by-mail ballot or the signature does not match the one on record?

(Sections 101.62 and 101.68, Fla. Stat.)

You may still have time to execute a <u>Vote-by-Mail Ballot Cure Affidavit</u> and have your vote-by-mail ballot counted. The affidavit must be received by the Supervisor of Election no later than 5 p.m. locally on the day before the election. You must also submit a copy of one of the following forms of identification with your affidavit:

- Current and valid ID that includes your name and photograph:
 - Florida driver license;
 - Florida identification card issued by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles;
 - United States passport;
 - debit or credit card;
 - military, student, retirement center, neighborhood association, or public assistance ID;
 - o veteran health ID card issued by U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs;
 - Florida license to carry a concealed weapon or firearm;
 - or employee ID card issued by any branch, department, agency, or entity of the Federal Government, the state, a county, or a municipality.
- Or only if you do not have one of the above forms of ID, use one of these ID that shows your name and current residence address instead:
 - current utility bill;
 - o **bank statement**;

Florida Department of State/Division of Elections

- o government check;
- o paycheck;
- o or government document (excluding voter ID card).

Instructions and the affidavit are available on the Division of Elections' website at: <u>dos.myflorida.com/elections</u> and on your county Supervisor of Elections' website.

Uniformed Services Members and Overseas Citizens (UOCAVA) 52 U.S.C. 20301

16. How do I register to vote or update my registration record?

(Sections 97.053, 101.694, Fla. Stat.)

If you are a United States uniformed services member on active duty, a Merchant Marine member, spouse or dependent thereof, or a United States citizen residing outside of the United States, you can register to vote or update your record in the same ways as any other voter. For further details on how to register or update your record, refer to questions under *Voter Registration* on page 7 and *Changes in Address, Name, Party or Signature* on page 9.

As a UOCAVA voter, in addition to registering online or using the statewide application form, you can also use the Federal Post Card Application (FPCA). The FPCA is unique in that it can be used as either a voter registration application or a request for a vote-by-mail ballot or both. The FPCA is available online on the Federal Voting Assistance Program's website at: <u>fvap.gov</u>, or by contacting your Voting Assistance Officer.

17. Can I register after the 29-day deadline for registration?

(See section 97.0555, Fla. Stat.)

Yes, you or accompanying family member can register after the 29-day deadline if otherwise qualified and you have:

- Been discharged or separated from the uniformed services or the U.S. Merchant Marine,
- Returned from a military deployment or activation, or
- Separated from employment outside the territorial limits of the United States.

The deadline is 5:00 p.m. in the county of registration on the Friday before the election. You will have to produce sufficient documentation showing evidence of qualifying for the late registration.

18. How do I request a vote-by-mail ballot?

(UOCAVA 52 U.S.C. 20301; Sections 101.62, 101.694, 101.6952, Fla. Stat.; Rule 1S-2.030, Fla. Admin. Code)

See Response to Question 10 - How can I request a vote-by-mail ballot?

As a UOCAVA voter, you can use also the Federal Post Card Application (FPCA) to submit a vote-by-mail ballot request. The FPCA is available online on the Federal Voting Assistance Program's website at: <u>fvap.gov</u>, or by contacting your Voting Assistance Officer. A request for a vote-by-mail ballot will be effective as a "standing" request to receive a vote-by-mail ballot for all elections in which you are eligible to participate starting from the date you submitted your initial request through the end of the calendar year of the second ensuing regularly scheduled general election.

19. When can I expect to get my vote-by-mail ballot?

(UOCAVA 52 U.S.C. 20301; Sections 101.62, 101.6952, Fla. Stat.; Rule 1S-2.030, Fla. Admin. Code)

Vote-by-mail ballots for requests already on file must be transmitted to absent stateside and overseas uniformed services members and overseas citizens at least 45 days before each election. If you have not received your ballot by two weeks before an election, contact your county Supervisor of Elections.

If you included an e-mail address with your vote-by-mail ballot request, the Supervisor will use that e-mail address to let you know when your request was received, the estimated date the ballot will be sent to you, and the date your voted ballot was received.

You can also track the status of your vote-by-mail ballot through the voter information lookup through the Division of Elections' website at: <u>dos.myflorida.com/elections</u> or through your Supervisor of Elections' website.

20. How and when do I return my vote-by-mail ballot?

(UOCAVA 52 U.S.C. 20301; Sections 101.62, 101.6952, Fla. Stat.; Rule 1S-2.030, Fla. Admin. Code)

Once you receive your vote-by-mail ballot, carefully follow the instructions sent to you with your vote-by-mail ballot or else your ballot may not count. Sign and date the ballot certificate to ensure that your ballot is counted. **Return the voted ballot so that your county Supervisor of Elections receives it no later than 7 p.m. on Election Day.**

A 10-day extension exists only for *overseas* voters in a presidential preference primary or general election. The ballot will be counted, provided the ballot is:

- Postmarked or dated no later than the date of the election,
- Received by the supervisor of elections of the county in which you are registered to vote no later than 10 days after the date of the election, and
- Proper (including complete).

Only *overseas* uniformed services members and U.S. citizens can return their voted ballot by fax; otherwise, the voter must return the ballot by mail, personal delivery, or delivery by another person.

Florida Department of State/Division of Elections

You can also track the status of your vote-by-mail ballot through the voter information lookup through the Division of Elections' website at: <u>dos.myflorida.com/elections</u> or through your Supervisor of Elections' website.

21. Can I use the federal write-in absentee ballot (FWAB) if my vote-bymail ballot has not arrived?

(UOCAVA 52 U.S.C. 20301; Military and Overseas Voters Empowerment Act; Section 101.6952, Fla. Stat.; Rule 1S-2.051, Fla. Admin. Code)

The federal write-in absentee ballot (FWAB) is an emergency back-up vote-by-mail ballot for absent stateside and overseas uniformed services members and overseas U.S. citizens. If it is getting close to Election Day and you still have not received your vote-by-mail ballot, use the FWAB. The FWAB is available online at: <u>fvap.gov</u>.

To use a FWAB, you must be a registered voter and have already requested a regular vote-by-mail ballot. The FWAB ballot can be used to vote for in any federal, state, or local races. To indicate your choice on a FWAB for:

- A federal office, write the candidate's name, or for general elections only, you have the option of writing either the candidate's name or the political party. In the latter case, the vote cast will be counted for the candidate of that political party, if there is such a party candidate on the ballot.
- A state or local office, write the office title and the candidate's name, or for general elections only, you have the option of writing either the candidate's name or the candidate's political party. In the latter case, the vote cast will be counted for candidate's political party, if there is such a party candidate on the ballot.
- A joint candidacy, you may write your choice for one or both qualified candidates on the same ticket and the vote cast will count for the joint candidacy.
- For a judicial merit retention race, write the name of the judge or justice and specify your vote by writing "yes" or "no" next to the name.
- For any ballot measure, identify the ballot measure by writing it on the ballot and specify your vote by writing "yes" or "no" next to the measure.

For more information, contact: Federal Voting Assistance Program Department of Defense 4800 Mark Center Drive, Suite 03J25-02 Alexandria, VA 22350-5000 Toll-free: 1-800-438-8683 Fax: 703-588-0108 Email: vote@fvap.gov

22. When can I use the state write-in vote-by-mail ballot?

(Section 101.6951, Fla. Stat.; Rule 1S-2.028, Fla. Admin. Code)

If you are an overseas voter and a military or other contingency will keep you from being able to get the official vote-by-mail ballot during the normal delivery period, you can request a State Write-in Vote-by-Mail Ballot from your Supervisor of Elections.

Florida Department of State/Division of Elections

- The State Write-in Vote-by-mail ballot can only be used for a general election.
- You must request the ballot from your Supervisor of Elections between 180 days (6 months) and 90 days (3 months) before the general election.

(The earliest date to request a State Write-in Ballot for the 2018 General Election is May 10, 2018.)

• To mark your choices on the ballot, write in the candidate's name or the name of a political party. In the latter case, the ballot will be counted for the candidate of that political party, if there is such a party candidate on the ballot

Early Voting

23. When is early voting?

(Section 101.657, Fla. Stat.)

If an election contains a federal or state race, early voting must be offered starting 10 days before and ending on the 3rd day before an election. A county Supervisor of Elections may offer one or more of additional days of early voting: the 15th, 14th, 13th, 12th, 11th, or 2nd day (Sunday) before the election.

Early voting must be offered at least 8, but not more than 12, hours per day.

Early voting is optional in elections not held in conjunction with a state or federal office.

Contact your Supervisor of Elections or view the supervisor's website to find out the specific times and locations for early voting when offered for an election in your county.

Voting at the Polls – What to Expect

24. When will the polls open and close?

(Sections 100.011, 101.657, Fla. Stat.)

On Election Day, polls open anytime from 7 a.m. until 7 p.m., local time. Any voter waiting in line at 7:00 p.m. will have the opportunity to cast a ballot.

For early voting days, time and locations, contact your Supervisor of Elections or go to the Supervisor's website for further information.

25. Where do I vote on election day?

(Sections 101.043, and 101.045, Fla. Stat., and Rule 1S-2.037, Fla. Admin. Code)

You can only vote in the precinct that corresponds to your address of legal residence. To determine your precinct and polling place on Election Day, check your voter information card. You may also find your polling place through the voter information lookup on the Division of Elections' website at <u>dos.myflorida.com/elections</u>, or on your Supervisor of Elections' website. If you vote at a precinct other than your assigned precinct, you will have to vote a provisional ballot.

Florida Department of State/Division of Elections

26. How will I know if my polling place changes?

(Sections 97.071 and 101.71, Fla. Stat.)

Any time you change your address resulting in a change to your assigned polling place or your polling place is changed for other reasons:

- You will receive notice and a new voter information card at least 14 days before the election.
- Notice will also be posted at least once in the newspaper, no sooner than 30 days before, but no later than 7 days before an election.
- A polling place change will be posted on your county Supervisor of Elections' website.
- In the case of an emergency and when time does not permit to provide the notices above, the notice of the new polling place will be posted at the old polling place.

27. What photo identification do I bring?

(Sections 101.043, and 101.045, Fla. Stat., and Rule 1S-2.037, Fla. Admin. Code)

You must show a photo and signature identification before you can vote. The twelve acceptable forms of photo identification are:

- Florida driver license,
- Florida identification card issued by the Department of Highway, Safety and Motor Vehicles,
- United States passport,
- Debit or credit card,
- Military identification,
- Student identification,
- Retirement center identification,
- Neighborhood association identification,
- Public assistance identification,
- Veteran health identification card issued by the United States Department of Veterans Affairs,
- License to carry a concealed weapon or firearm issued pursuant to s. 790.06, or
- Employee identification card issued by any branch, department, agency, or entity of the Federal Government, the state, a county, or a municipality.

Note: If your photo identification does not contain your signature, you will be required to show an additional form of identification that includes your signature. Once your identity has been established, you will be asked to sign the precinct register or electronic device (and during early voting, the early voting ballot certificate) and then you will be allowed to vote.

28. Who are poll watchers?

(Section 101.131, Fla. Stat.)

Besides poll workers present at the polls to process voters, you may see people who have been designated as poll watchers in the polls. The following entities and persons may each have one poll watcher in each polling room or early voting area at any one time during an election:

- Each political party.
- Each political committee with issues on the ballot that they are registered to support or oppose.
- Each candidate.

Poll watchers may not interact with voters. They must be registered voters in the county in which they serve and cannot be candidates or law enforcement officers. A poll watcher is given an identification badge that he or she must wear while in the polling room or early voting site.

29. What is provisional voting?

(Section 101.048, Fla. Stat.; Rule 1S-2.037, Fla. Admin. Code)

If your eligibility to vote cannot be determined for any reason at the polls, you are still entitled to vote using a provisional ballot. You must be given at the time of voting a written notice of rights that includes:

- A statement that you have the right to bring further evidence (if you choose) of your eligibility to the Supervisor of Elections. You have until 5 p.m. of the second day after the election to do so.
- A statement that if you voted a provisional ballot solely because you did not bring in identification, you do not have to bring in further evidence of eligibility. The local canvassing board will count your ballot if you voted in the right precinct and the signature on the provisional ballot certificate matches the signature on the voter registration record.
- A statement that if you voted a provisional ballot because your personal identifying number could not be verified, you can provide in person or by copy through fax, e-mail, or mail a copy of the card with the identifying number to the Supervisor of Elections and that the deadline is 5 p.m. of the second day after the election to do so.
- Instructions on how you can find out after the election if your provisional ballot was counted, and if not, the reason(s) why.
- A statement that if this is a primary election, you should contact the Supervisor of Elections' office immediately to confirm that you are registered and will be able to vote in the general election.

30. What voting equipment do I use?

(Sections 101.292-101.295, 101.5611, 101.56075, Fla. Stat)

Each county purchases its own voting system. No voting system can be bought or used in an election unless it has first been tested and certified by the Florida Department of State.

All voting, must be by marksense (i.e., paper) ballot which uses a marking device to designate ballot selections. Persons with disabilities have the option to vote on an accessible voting equipment instead.

If you have questions about the voting system in your county and how to use it, contact your <u>county Supervisor of Elections</u>. Instructions on how to use your voting system will also be available at the polls.

Assistance with Voting

31. Can I bring or get help at the polls?

(Sections 97.061, 101.051, 101.661, and 101.655, Fla. Stat.)

Yes, if you need help to vote due to blindness, disability, or inability to read or write or need language assistance, you have several options for voting. You do not have to reveal the nature or extent of a disability.

- Vote at the polls using a touchscreen or other accessible marking device. Federal and state laws require accessible voting equipment to be in each polling place. These devices allow you to vote in private with little to no assistance.
- Vote at the polls with personal help. You can have anyone except your employer or employer's agent, or your union's officer or agent, help you. You can also get the help of two election officials at the polling place.

You will have to declare in writing that you need help to vote unless you already did so on your voter registration application. If someone other than the clerk or inspector helps you, the person you choose to help you will also have to fill out a declaration.

If you have any questions about getting help, please direct your questions to the clerk or inspector at the polling place.

- Vote a vote-by-mail ballot. You can vote from anywhere including your home, assisted living facility or nursing home. You can have anyone except your employer or employer's agent, or your union's officer or agent, help you mark your choices on the ballot.
- Supervised voting at an assisted living facility or nursing home if requested by your facility and made available through your Supervisor of Elections' office.

If you need assistance in marking your ballot, please let a poll worker know. If you make a mistake on a paper ballot, ask for a replacement. You may receive up to two replacements, or a total of three ballots.

Florida Department of State/Division of Elections

Sample Ballot

32. Where can I get a sample ballot for an upcoming election? (Section 101.20, Fla. Stat.)

Sample ballots are available in the following ways:

- Each polling place will have at least two sample ballots.
- The Supervisor of Elections must publish a sample ballot in the newspaper of general circulation in the county before the day of the election.
- Seven days before an election, the Supervisor of Elections may:
 - Email you a sample ballot if your email is on record. (The statewide voter registration application includes a space to request a sample ballot by email.)
 - Mail a sample ballot to each registered voter or household in which there is a registered voter.
 - If you have questions regarding sample ballots, contact your county Supervisor of Elections.

Primary Election

33. What does a "closed primary" mean?

(Sections 100.061 and 101.021, Fla. Stat., and Article VI, Section 5(b), Florida Constitution)

A closed primary in Florida means that only voters who are registered members of a political party which has candidates on the primary election ballot may vote for that party's candidates.

Voters with no party affiliation are not eligible to vote for party candidates in a primary election. However, all qualified voters regardless of party affiliation or no party affiliation can vote in the following races appearing on a primary election ballot:

- All candidates in the same race have the same party affiliation and the winner will have no opposition in the general election. (This is known as a **Universal Primary Contest**.)
- Nonpartisan judicial and school board offices.
- Nonpartisan special districts and other local offices.
- Local referendum questions.

At a *general* election, all registered voters may vote regardless of party affiliation.

Judicial Elections

34. How do I vote on judicial races?

(Section 105.041, Fla. Stat.)

All judicial races in Florida are nonpartisan so all registered voters may vote regardless of party affiliation.

Justices of the Florida Supreme Court and judges of the District Courts of Appeal are appointed, not elected. However, after their appointment, every term thereafter, they will appear on the general election ballot as a guestion of retention. You will be asked to a vote on their retention by answering 'YES' or 'NO'.

Candidates for circuit and county court judge will appear on the primary and the general election ballots for election. However, some counties may have chosen to vote on a circuit or county court race as a question of retention in lieu of election. In those cases, you will be asked to a vote on their retention by answering 'YES' or 'NO'.

Public Record

35. Is my voter registration and voting history public record?

(Section 97.0585, Fla. Stat.)

Yes, voter registration information and voting history are public record. However, the following information is exempt from public disclosure:

- Social Security number,
- Driver's license number.
- Florida identification number.
- Location of voter's place of registration or voter registration update.

A voter's signature may be viewed but may not be copied.

Your voter registration information may be exempt from public disclosure, if:

- a. You are or become a participant in the Attorney General's Address Confidentiality Program for victims of domestic violence and stalking. Contact the Attorney General's Office's Bureau of Advocacy and Grants Management at 850.414.3300 to learn how to become a participant. Once you are a participant, contact your county Supervisor of Elections for how to register to vote or if already registered, to get your information protected as a participant. (See section 97.0585(3) and sections 741.401-741.465, Florida Statutes.)
- b. You fall within one of the statutorily designated classes of high-risk professionals (e.g., judge, prosecutor, firefighter, human resource officer, etc.). You must first submit a written request to your county Supervisor of Elections or the Florida Division of Elections You may use the Public Records Exemption Request form. (Section 119.071(4)(d)1, Fla. Stat). This will only protect address and other identifying information from future public disclosure.

Florida Department of State/Division of Elections

Poll Workers

36. How can I become a poll worker?

(Sections 102.012, 102.014, and 102.021, Fla. Stat.)

You must be a registered or pre-registered voter in the county in which you want to serve. You will receive the training necessary to perform your duty as a poll worker before every election. Contact your local Supervisor of Elections if you are interested in serving.

Violations

37. How do I report voter or election fraud or violation of election law?

(Sections 97.012(15), 97.023, 97.028, and 97.0575 Fla. Stat.; Rules 1S-2.025, 1S-2.036, 1S-2.038, and 1S-2.042(8), Fla. Admin. Code)

You may report voter fraud or other violations in the following ways:

 For a violation of either the National Voter Registration Act of 1993, the Help America Vote Act of 2002, or an irregularity or fraud involving voter registration, voting, candidate petitions or issue petitions, or removal procedures under the Florida Election Code, submit a written complaint to the *Florida Division of Elections*, Room 316, R.A. Gray Building, 500 S. Bronough Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1050, 850-245-6200.

Complaint forms are available on the Division of Elections' website at: <u>dos.myflorida.com/elections/contacts/elections-fraud-complaint</u>. The Division of Elections also operates a **Voter Fraud Hotline (in English and Español):** Toll Free 1-877-868-3737, M-F 8:00a.m. - 5:00p.m., Eastern Time. If you are someone who is deaf, hard-of-hearing, deaf-blind or speech disabled, please contact the Division using the Florida Relay Service, 1.800.955.8771 (TDD) or 1.800.955.8770 (Voice). For more information, visit the Florida Relay Service.

- For a violation involving campaign financing, candidates, committees, or other political activities under chapters <u>104</u> and <u>106</u>, and section <u>105.071</u>, Florida Statutes, submit a sworn written complaint to the *Florida Elections Commission*, Suite 224 Collins Building, 107 West Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1050, 850-922-4539. The Florida Elections Commission has jurisdiction only to impose civil penalties (*i.e.*, fines). (See section 106.25, Fla. Stat.) Note: The Florida Elections Commission is a separate entity from the Department of State, Division of Elections.
- For all other violations should be reported to the local state attorney. (<u>Chapter</u> <u>104</u>, Florida Statutes, contains criminal violations within Florida's Election Code.) Violations of Chapter 104 may be reported to the Florida Elections Commission or the state attorney, or both.

Contact information

38. Who do I contact if I have additional questions?

The Division of Elections provides a toll-free Voter Assistance Helpline for general questions: 1-866-308-6739.

For questions directly related to the election process in your county, contact your county Supervisor of Elections. Contact information and website addresses are located on the following pages.

Florida's Supervisors of Elections

Alachua

Kim A. Barton 515 N. Main St., Suite 300 Gainesville, FL 32601 Phone: 352-374-5252 Fax: 352-374-5264 E-mail: kbarton@alachuacounty.us votealachua.com

Baker

Nita Crawford 32 N. 5th St., Suite A MacClenny, FL 32063 Phone: 904-259-6339 Fax: 904-259-2799 E-mail: vote@bakercountyfl.org bakerelections.com

Bay

Mark Andersen 830 W. 11th Street Panama City, FL 32401 Phone: 850-784-6100 Fax: 850-784-6141 E-mail: baysuper@bayvotes.org bayvotes.org

Bradford

Terry L. Vaughan 945 N. Temple Ave., Ste. C Starke, FL 32091 Phone: 904-966-6266 Fax: 904-966-6165 E-mail: bradsoe@bradfordcountyfl.gov bradfordelections.com

Brevard

Lori Scott 2725 Judge Fran Jamieson Way, Bldg. C Melbourne, FL 32940 Phone: 321-633-2124 Fax: 321-633-2130 E-mail: soe@votebrevard.com votebrevard.com

Broward

Peter Antonacci 115 S. Andrews Ave., Room 102 Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301 Phone: 954-357-7050 Fax: 954-357-7070 E-mail: elections@browardsoe.org browardsoe.org

Calhoun

Sharon Chason 20859 Central Avenue E., Room 117 Blountstown, FL 32424 Phone: 850-674-8568 Fax: 850-674-2449 E-mail: soe@votecalhoun.com votecalhoun.com

Charlotte

Paul A. Stamoulis 226 Taylor Street, Unit 120 Punta Gorda, FL 33950 Phone: 941-833-5400 Fax: 941-833-5422 E-mail: soe@charlottevotes.com charlottevotes.com

Citrus

Susan A. Gill 120 North Apopka Avenue Inverness, FL 34450 Phone: 352-341-6740 Fax: 352-341-6749 E-mail: vote@votecitrus.com votecitrus.com

Clay

Chris H. Chambless 500 N. Orange Ave. Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 Phone: 904-269-6350 Fax: 904-284-0935 E-mail: cchambless@clayelections.com clayelections.com

Collier

Jennifer J. Edwards 3750 Enterprise Ave., Rev. Dr. MLK Bldg. Naples, FL 34104 Phone: 239-252-8683 Fax: 239-774-9468 E-mail: supervisorofelections@Colliergov.net colliervotes.com

Columbia

Elizabeth "Liz" P. Horne 971 W. Duval Street, Suite 102 Lake City, FL 32055 Phone: 386-758-1026 Fax: 386-755-7233 E-mail: election@votecolumbia.com Votecolumbia.com

DeSoto

Mark F. Negley 201 E. Oak St., Suite 104 Arcadia, FL 34266 Phone: 863-993-4871 Fax: 863-993-4875 E-mail: mnegley@votedesoto.com votedesoto.com

Dixie

Starlet Cannon 229 NE 351 Hwy., Suite A Cross City, FL 32628 Phone: 352-498-1216 Fax: 352-498-1218 E-mail: dixiecountysoe@bellsouth.net dixievotes.com

Duval

Mike Hogan 105 East Monroe Street Jacksonville, FL 32202 Phone: 904-630-1414 Fax: 904-630-2920 E-mail:mhogan@coj.net duvalelections.com

Escambia

David H. Stafford 213 Palafox Place, 2nd Floor Pensacola, FL 32502 Phone: 850-595-3900 Fax: 850-595-3914 E-mail: soe@escambiavotes.com escambiavotes.com

Flagler

Kaiti Lenhart 1769 E. Moody Blvd., Building 2, Suite 101 Bunnell, FL 32110 Phone: 386-313-4170 Fax: 386-313-4171 E-mail: info@flaglerelections.com flaglerelections.com

Franklin

Heather Riley 47 Avenue F Apalachicola, FL 32320 Phone: 850-653-9520 Fax: 850-653-9092 E-mail: Heather@votefranklin.com votefranklin.com

Gadsden

Shirley G. Knight 16 S. Madison St. Quincy, FL 32351 Phone: 850-627-9910 Fax: 850-627-6144 E-mail: info@gadsdensoe.com gadsdensoe.com

Gilchrist

Connie Sanchez 112 South Main Street, Room 128 Trenton, FL 32693 Phone: 352-463-3194 Fax: 352-463-3196 E-mail: elections@gilchrist.fl.us votegilchrist.com

Glades

Aletris Farnam 500 Avenue J Moore Haven, FL 33471 Phone: 863-946-6005 Fax: 863-946-0313 E-mail: vote@myglades.com voteglades.com

Gulf

John Hanlon 401 Long Avenue Port St. Joe, FL 32456 Phone: 850-229-6117 Fax: 850-229-8975 E-mail: gulfsoe@votegulf.com votegulf.com

Hamilton

Laura Hutto 1153 US Highway 41 NW, Suite 1 Jasper, FL 32052 Phone: 386-792-1426 Fax: 386-792-3205 E-mail: elect@windstream.net hamiltonvotes.com

Hardee

Diane Smith 311 N. 6th Avenue Wauchula, FL 33873 Phone: 863-773-6061 Fax: 863-773-6813 E-mail: info@hardeecountyelections.com hardeecountyelections.com

Hendry

Brenda Hoots 25 E. Hickpochee Ave. LaBelle, FL 33935 Phone: 863-675-5230 Fax: 863-675-7803 E-mail: supervisor@hendryelections.org hendryelections.org

Hernando

Shirley Anderson 20 N. Main Street, Room 165 Brooksville, FL 34601 Phone: 352-754-4125 Fax: 352-754-4425 E-mail: elections@@hernandovotes.com hernandovotes.com

Highlands

Penny Ogg 580 S. Commerce Ave., Room A201 Sebring, FL 33870 Phone: 863-402-6655 Fax: 863-402-6657 E-mail: soe@votehighlands.com votehighlands.com

Hillsborough

Craig Latimer 2514 N. Falkenburg Rd. Tampa, FL 33619 Phone: 813-744-5900 Fax: 813-744-5843 E-mail: voter@hcsoe.org votehillsborough.org

Holmes

Debbie W. Morris 201 N. Oklahoma Street, Ste. 102 Bonifay, FL 32425 Phone: 850-547-1107 Fax: 850-547-4168 E-mail: Debbie@holmeselections.com holmeselections.com

Indian River

Leslie R. Swan 4375 43rd Avenue Vero Beach, FL 32967 Phone: 772-226-3440 Fax: 772-770-5367 E-mail: info@voteindianriver.com voteindianriver.com

Jackson

Sylvia D. Stephens 2851 Jefferson St. Marianna, FL 32448 Phone: 850-482-9652 Fax: 850-482-9102 E-mail: email@jacksoncountysoe.org jacksoncountysoe.org

Jefferson

Marty Bishop 380 W. Dogwood Street Monticello, FL 32344 Phone: 850-997-3348 Fax: 850-997-6958 E-mail: soejeffersonco@aol.com jeffersonvotes.com

Lafayette

Travis Hart 120 W. Main St., Room 129 Mayo, FL 32066 Phone: 386-294-1261 Fax: 386-294-2164 E-mail: lafayettesoe@gmail.com lafayettevotes.net

Lake

Alan Hays 315 W. Main St. (pre-June 30, 2018) 1898 E. Burleigh Blvd. (July 1, 2018) Tavares, FL 32778 Phone: 352-343-9734 Fax: 352-343-3605 E-mail: hays@lakevotes.com lakevotes.com

Lee

Tommy Doyle 2480 Thompson St. Fort Myers, FL 33902 Phone: 239-533-8683 Fax: 239-533-6310 E-mail: elections@lee.vote lee.vote

Leon

Mark Earley 2990-1 Apalachee Pkwy. Tallahassee, FL 32301 Phone: 850-606-8683 Fax: 850-606-8601 E-mail: Vote@leoncountyfl.gov leonvotes.org

Levy

Tammy Jones 421 South Court St. Bronson, FL 32621 Phone: 352-486-5163 Fax: 352-486-5146 E-mail: elections@votelevy.com votelevy.com

Liberty

Gina McDowell 10818 NW SR 20 Bristol, FL 32321 Phone: 850-643-5226 Fax: 850-643-5648 E-mail: vote@libertyelections.com libertyelections.com

Madison

Thomas "Tommy" Hardee 239 SW Pinckney Street Madison, FL 32340 Phone: 850-973-6507 Fax: 850-973-3780 E-mail: thardee@votemadison.com votemadison.com

Manatee

Michael Bennett 600 301 Blvd. W., Ste. 108 Bradenton, FL 34205 Phone: 941-741-3823 Fax: 941-741-3820 E-mail: info@votemanatee.com votemanatee.com

Marion

Wesley Wilcox 981 NE 16th St. Ocala, FL 34478 Phone: 352-620-3290 Fax: 352-620-3286 E-mail: elections@votemarion.com votemarion.com

Martin

Vicki Davis 135 SE Martin Luther King, Jr. Blvd. Stuart, FL 34994 Phone: 772-288-5637 Fax: 772-288-5765 E-mail: elections@martinvotes.com martinvotes.com

Miami-Dade

Christina White 2700 NW. 87th Ave. Miami, FL 33172 Phone: 305-499-8683 Fax: 305-499-8501 E-mail: soedade@miamidade.gov miamidade.gov/elections

Monroe

Joyce Griffin 530 Whitehead Street, Suite 101 Key West, FL 33040 Phone: 305-292-3416 Fax: 305-292-3406 E-mail: info@keys-elections.org keyselections.org

Nassau

Vicki P. Cannon 96135 Nassau Place, Suite 3 Yulee, FL 32097 Phone: 904-491-7500 Fax: 904-432-1400 E-mail: vcannon@votenassau.com votenassau.com

Okaloosa

Paul A. Lux 302 Wilson Street North, Suite 102 Crestview, Florida 32536 Phone: 850-689-5600 Fax: 850-689-5644 E-mail: plux@myokaloosa.com govote-okaloosa.com

Okeechobee

Diane Hagan 304 NW 2nd Street, Rm 144 Okeechobee, FL 34972 Phone: 863-763-4014 Fax: 863-763-0152 E-mail: soe@voteokeechobee.com voteokeechobee.com

Orange

Bill Cowles 119 W. Kaley St. Orlando, FL 32806 Phone: 407-836-2070 Fax: 407-254-6596 E-mail: voter@ocfelections.com ocfelections.com

Osceola

Mary Jane Arrington 2509 E. Irlo Bronson Memorial Hwy Kissimmee, FL 34744 Phone: 407-742-6000 Fax: 407-742-6001 E-mail: soe@voteosceola.com voteosceola.com

Palm Beach

Wendy Sartory Link 240 S. Military Trail West Palm Beach, FL 33415 Phone: 561-656-6200 Fax: 561-656-6287 E-mail: mailbox@pbcelections.org pbcelections.org

Pasco

Brian E. Corley 14236 6th St., Suite 200 Dade City, FL 33523 Phone: 800-851-8754 Fax: 352-521-4319 E-mail: webcomment@pascovotes.com pascovotes.com

Pinellas

Deborah Clark 13001 Starkey Road Largo, FL 33773 Phone: 727-464-8683 Fax: 727-464-7636 E-mail: election@votepinellas.com votepinellas.com

Polk

Lori Edwards 250 S. Broadway Ave. Bartow, FL 33830 Phone: 863-534-5888 Fax: 863-534-5899 E-mail: info@polkelections.com polkelections.com

Putnam

Charles Overturf 2509 Crill Ave., Suite 900 Palatka, FL 32177 Phone: 386-329-0224 Fax: 386-329-0455 E-mail: electionsoffice@putnam-fl.com soe.putnam-fl.com

Santa Rosa

Tappie A. Villane 6495 Caroline Street, Suite F Milton, FL 32570 Phone: 850-983-1900 Fax: 850-983-1829 E-mail: villane@santarosa.fl.gov votesantarosa.com

Sarasota

Ron Turner 101 S. Washington Blvd. Sarasota, FL 34236 Phone: 941-861-8600 Fax: 941-861-8609 E-mail: rturner@sarasotavotes.com sarasotavotes.com

Seminole

Chris Anderson 1500 E. Airport Blvd. Sanford, FL 32773 Phone: 407-585-8683 Fax: 407-708-7705 E-mail: elections@voteseminole.org voteseminole.org

St. Johns

Vicky Oakes 4455 Avenue A, Suite 101 St. Augustine, FL 32095 Phone: 904-823-2238 Fax: 904-823-2249 E-mail: voakes@votesjc.com votesjc.com

St. Lucie

Gertrude Walker 4132 Okeechobee Road Fort Pierce, FL 34947 Phone: 772-462-1500 Fax: 772-462-1439 E-mail: elections@slcelections.com slcelections.com

Sumter

William Keen 7375 Powell Rd., Suite 125 Wildwood, FL 34785 Phone: 352-569-1540 Fax: 352-569-1541 E-mail: bill.keen@sumterelections.org sumterelections.org

Suwanee

Glenda B. Williams 220 Pine Ave SW Live Oak, FL 32064 Phone: 386-362-2616 Fax: 386-364-5185 E-mail: gwilliams@suwanneevotes.com suwanneevotes.com

Taylor

Dana Southerland 433 U.S. 19 N Perry, FL 32347 Phone: 850-838-3515 Fax: 850-838-3516 E-mail: taylorelections@gtcom.net taylorelections.com

Union

Deborah K. Osborne 175 W. Main Street Lake Butler, FL 32054 Phone: 386-496-2236 Fax: 386-496-1535 E-mail: Debbie.osborne@unionflvotes.com unionflvotes.com

Volusia

Lisa Lewis 125 W. New York Ave. DeLand, FL 32720 Phone: 386-736-5930 Fax: 386-943-7073 E-mail: elections@volusia.org volusiaelections.org

Wakulla

Henry Wells 3115-B Crawfordville Hwy. Crawfordville, FL 32327 Phone: 850-926-7575 Fax: 850-926-8104 Email: hwells@mywakulla.com wakullaelection.com

Walton

Bobby Beasley 571 US Highway 90 East DeFuniak Springs, FL 32433 Phone: 850-892-8112 Fax: 850-892-8113 Email: bbeasley@votewalton.com votewalton.com

Washington

Carol F. Rudd 1331 South Blvd, Suite 900 Chipley, FL 32428 Phone: 850-638-6230 Fax: 850-638-6238 Email: crudd@wcsoe.org wcsoe.org



FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF STATE Division of Elections 500 S. Bronough St., The R.A. Gray Building, Room 316 Tallahassee, FL 32399-0250 850.245.6200 <u>dos.myflorida.com/elections</u>